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GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Table dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Great American Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company")} is based in east central [llinois and is the
parent company of First Federal Savings Bank of Champaign-Urbana (the "Bank"). The
Company purchases loans from the Bank, but otherwise conducts no significant business except
through the Bank. In addition to traditional banking services, the Bank, through its subsidiary
Park Avenue Service Corporation ("PASC"), provides securities brokerage services through a
third-party broker-dealer, Scout Brokerage Services, Inc., and also engages in the sale of tax
deferred annuities, and through GTPS Insurance Agency ("Agency") provides insurance related
products to customers. The Agency sells a variety of insurance products inciuding life, health,
automobile, property and casualty insurance. Refer to Note 17 — “Business Industry Segments”
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for financial information relating to the
Company’s industry segments, including banking services and insurance/brokerage services. All
references to the Company include the Bank and PASC, unless otherwise indicated.

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report may include certain forward-looking
statements based on current management expectations. The Company's actual results could
differ materially from those management expectations. Factors that could cause future results to
vary from current management expectations include, but are not limited to, general economic
conditions, legislative and regulatory changes, monetary and fiscal policies of the federal
government, changes in tax policies, rates and regulations of federal, state and local tax
authorities, changes in interest rates, deposit flows, the cost of funds, demand for loan products,
demand for financial services, competition, changes in the quality or competition, changes in the
quality or composition of the Bank's lcan and investment portfolios, changes in accounting
principles, policies or guidelines, and other economic, competitive, governmental and
technological factors affecting the Company's operations, markets, products, services and prices.
Further description of the risks and uncertainties to the business are included in detail in Item 1,
"Business" of the Company's 2002 Form 10-KSB. The Company does not undertake — and
specifically disclaims any obligation — to publicly release the result of any revisions which may
be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of
such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

Results of Operations

{General

The Company recorded net income of $1,904,000 in 2002, which was $703,000, or 58.5%,
higher than the $1,201,000 reported for 2001. Basic earnings per share increased $0.99, or
76.7%, from $1.29 in 2001 to $2.28 in 2002 and diluted earnings per share increased $0.84, or
67.2%, from $1.25 per share in 2001 to $2.09 in 2002. Earnings per share were higher in 2002
due to a combination of growth in net income and a reduction in the average number of shares
outstanding, which declined mainly as a result of common stock repurchased by the Company




during 2002. The average number of shares outstanding, assuming full dilution, decreased by
48,451 shares, from 959,933 shares for fiscal 2001 to 911,482 shares for fiscal 2002. The return
on average assets was 1.15% for 2002 compared to 0.73% for 2001 and the return on average
equity was 10.17% in 2002 compared to 6.23% for 2001.

Net income was higher in 2002 due to an increase in net interest income of $510,000 and an
increase in noninterest income of $857,000, offset by an increase in noninterest expense of
$280,000 and an increase in income tax expense of $376,000.

Net income from banking services was $1,718,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002, an
increase of $695,000, or 67.9%, from the $1,023,000 recorded for the year ended December 31,
2001. Net income from banking services was higher in 2002 due primarily to an increase in net
interest income of $510,000, a reduction in the provision for loan losses of $8,000, an increase in
noninterest income of $607,000, offset by an increase in noninterest expense of $26,000 and an
increase in income tax expense of $388,000. Noninterest income from banking services was
higher in 2002 mainly due to gains on the sale of mortgage loans totaling $647,000, which
includes both the cash gain on loans sold of $439,000 and gains on the recording of capitalized
mortgage servicing rights of $208,000. Gains on the sale of mortgage loans totaled $127,000 in
2001. Customer service fees and other service charges and fees were also higher in 2002.
Noninterest expense from banking services was higher in 2002 due to increases in advertising,
legal fees, expenses associated with a new debit card product implemented in late 2001, costs
related to check clearing activities and an increase in checking account losses, offset by a
decrease in total salaries and benefits expense.

Net income from insurance/brokerage services increased $8,000, or 4.5%, from $178,000 in
2001 to $186,000 in 2002. Total commission income increased $294,000, or 23.8% from
$1,233,000 in 2001 to $1,527,000 in 2002, primarily insurance sales commissions due mainly to
growth in new customers. Noninterest expenses related to insurance/brokerage services
increased $294,000, from $938,000 in 2001 to $1,232,000 in 2002, primarily salaries and
benefits expenses, furniture and fixture expenses, and office expenses. Income tax expense
associated with insurance/brokerage services decreased $12,000 in 2002.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income increased $510,000, or 8.7%, from $5,849,000 in 2001 to $6,359,000 in
2002. Growth in net interest income was mainly due to reductions in deposit interest expense
and interest on Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances, offset by decreases in interest
income from loans and investment securities interest.

Interest Income - Interest income was $10,603,000 in 2002, a decrease of $1,104,000, or
9.4%, from the $11,707,000 reported in 2001. Interest income earned on loans totaled
$10,215,000 in 2002, a decrease of $923,000, or 8.3%, from the $11,138,000 total for 2001.
Interest income from investment securities decreased $175,000, from $283,000 in 2001 to
$108,000 in 2002. Interest income from deposits with financial institutions and other
institutions, which includes interest generated from interest-bearing demand deposits, interest on




balances maintained in the Federated Liquid Cash Trust fund and dividends received on FHLB
stock decreased from $286,000 in 2001 to $280,000 in 2002.

Loan interest income decreased in 2002 due to a reduction in average net loans and a decrease
in the average yield on loans, offset by an increase in loan fee income. The total average balance
of net loans decreased from $138.53 million in 2001 to $134.42 million in 2002, a decrease of
$4.11 million, or 3.0%. The following schedule compares average total loan balances by major
categories:

Average Average
Balance Balance Percentage
2002 2001 Change Change
One-to-four-family mortgage loans $ 74726 § 81,178 $(6,452) (8.0)%
Muilti-family mortgage loans 19,418 19,527 (109) (0.6)
Commercial mortgage loans 15,791 16,589 (798) (4.8)
Construction loans 2,859 2,168 691 31.9
Total real estate loans 112,794 116,462 (6,668) (5.6)
Commercial loans 9,451 8,032 1,419 17.7
Consumer loans 13,310 11,999 1,311 10.9
Total loans 135,555 139,493 (3,938) (2.8)
Allowance for loan losses (1,138) (964) (174) 18.1
Total loans, net $ 134,417 $ 138,529 $(4,112) (3.0)%

Average total loans declined in 2002 mainly due to the $6.45 million decrease in the average
balance of total one-to-four-family mortgage loans. The average balance of total one-to-four
family mortgage loans, which includes mortgage loans held for sale, declined during 2002
primarily due to loan sales and repayments exceeding new loans. The majority of home loans
originated during 2002 were originated for sale to the secondary mortgage market. The
Company implemented a program to sell home loans to the Federal National Mortgage
Association (“Fannie Mae”) in July 2001 and continued this program in 2002. The Company
began this program in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk due to the
decline in home mortgage rates during 2001. Since mortgage rates continued to decline during
2002, the Company maintained this program in 2002. The Company uses published rates such
as the Freddie Mac commitment rate in setting one-to-four-family residential mortgage rates.
The 30-year Freddie Mac commitment rate averaged 6.97% in 2001, decreasing to an average of
6.54% in 2002. The Company's 30-year offering rate averaged 6.66% in 2002, down from
7.65% in 2001. During 2002, one-to-four-family loans originated and sold, or committed to be
sold, totaled $26.67 million.

The average balance of total commercial mortgage loans declined by $798,000 in 2002
mainly due to one large loan payoff in January totaling $700,000 and a second large payoff
totaling $1.39 million in February 2002, offset by the transfer of one large loan totaling $1.67
million from construction loans to commercial mortgage loans in May 2002. Average total
construction loans increased $691,000 in 2002 due partly to the $1.67 million loan which
transferred to commercial mortgage loans in May 2002. The construction project securing this
loan began in late 2001. The average balance of construction loans for the building of one-to-



four-family home loans was also higher in 2002. Average total commercial loans increased
$1.42 million in 2002 due partly to two large commercial lines of credit which were both
originated in the second half of 2001. The total average balance of these two loans was $1.25
million in 2002 compared to $357,000 in 2001, an increase of $893,000. Average total
commercial loans also increased due to several smaller loans originated during 2002. Average
total consumer loans grew by $1.31 million from 2001 to 2002, mainly due to new home equity
loans. During 2002, the Company continued to actively promote revolving home equity loans, a
product first introduced in June 2000. The interest rate on this product floats daily with the
prime lending rate. Total average home equity loans increased from $1.30 million in 2001 to
$3.19 million in 2002, an increase of §1.89 million. Average total fixed rate secured consumer
loans declined $583,000 in 2002.

Loan fees, which are included in interest income on loans, increased $49,000, or 21.9% from
$224,000 in 2001 to $273,000 in 2002. This increase was mainly due to fees generated on higher
volumes of one-to-four-family residential loans and construction loans originated in 2002 and
increases in deferred fees recognized, late fees paid and credit life insurance commissions.

The average yield on loans declined from 8.04% in 2001 to 7.60% in 2002. This decline is
mainly attributable to the overall decrease in market interest rates during both 2001 and 2002.
During 2001, the Federal Open Market Committee, or “FOMC”, the governing body that
established the Federal funds rate and the discount rate, lowered these key interest rates a total of
11 times. The Federal funds rate dropped from a high of 6.50% in January 2001 to 4.75% by
December 2001. The FMOC dropped key interest rates only once during 2002, reducing the
Federal funds rate and the discount rate by an additional 50 basis points in November 2002. The
prime rate, a key indicator used by the Company in establishing interest rates charged to
consumer and commercial customers, decreased from 9.50% in January 2001 to 4.75% in
December 2001. This rate also declined in November 2002, falling to 4.25%.

Average total investment securities were $1.69 million in 2002, a decrease of $2.59 million,
or 60.5%, from the average $4.28 million maintained during 2001. This decline was the primary
reason that interest income from investment securities decreased $175,000, or 61.8%, from
$283,000 in 2001 to $108,000 in 2002. During 20C1, investment securities consisted of Federal
agency securities totaling $3.00 million and mortgage-backed securities. The Federal agency
securities were called in the second and third quarters of 2001. The Company did not purchase
any new securities during 2002 or 2001. During 2002, the Company received principal
repayments on mortgage-backed securities of $750,000. As of December 31, 2002, mortgage-
backed securities totaling $1.26 million with maturities ranging from sixteen to twenty-six years
and a weighted average rate of 6.79% were the only securities in the investment portfolio.

Interest income earned on deposits with financial institutions and other declined from
$286,000 in 2001 to $280,000 in 2002 mainly due to falling short-term interest rates during 2001
and 2002. The decline in interest income due to lower interest rates was mainly offset, however,
by an increase in the average total balance of these deposits. Interest income earned on deposits
with financial institutions and other includes interest generated from interest-bearing demand
deposits, Federated Liquid Cash Trust fund interest and dividends earned on FHLB stock. The




interest-bearing demand deposits maintained by the Company during 2002 and 2001 were
chiefly deposits used for short-term cash needs and were primarily maintained at the FHLB.

The average total balances of interest-bearing demand deposits increased $6.56 million, from
$3.74 million in 2001 to $10.30 million in 2002. The Federated Liquid Cash Trust is a money
market fund used for depositing funds that may be required in the short-term. The average
balance of the Federated Liquid Cash Trust fund was $4.46 million in 2002, $2.33 million
greater than the $2.13 million maintained in 2001. The increase in the average balances of
interest-bearing demand deposits and the Federated Liquid Cash Trust in 2002 was mainly due to
proceeds generated from loan sales.

The average yield on interest-earning assets decreased from 7.82% in 2001 to 6.97% in 2002,
due partly to the decline in market interest rates during 2001 and 2002. The average yield on
interest-earning assets also decreased in 2002 due to the shift in the mix of assets from loans to
interest bearing-demand deposits. The yield on average interest-bearing demand deposits fell
from 3.23% in 2001 to 1.43% in 2002, and the yield on the Federal Liquid Cash Trust fund
decreased from 4.70% in 2001 to 1.57% in 2002. The average yield on FHLB stock also
decreased from 6.46% in 2001 to 5.24% in 2002. The yield on average investment securities
decreased from 6.62% in 2001 to 6.40% in 2002 due to Federal agency securities being called in
the second and third quarters of 2001. The average yield on these securities was 6.56%. The
average yield on net loans was 7.60% in 2002, down from 8.04% in 2001.

Interest Expense - Interest expense decreased from $5,858,000 in 2001 to $4,244,000 in
2002, a decrease of $1,614,000, or 27.6%. Interest expense on deposits decreased $1,492,000, or
30.5%, from $4,895,000 in 2001 to $3,403,000 in 2002. The majority of the decline in interest
expense on deposits occurred in interest expense on certificates of deposit. Interest expense on
certificates of deposit was $2,688,000 in 2002, $1,353,000, or 33.5% lower than the $4,041,000
recorded in 2001. Interest expense on certificates of deposit was lower in 2002 due to lower
offering rates in 2002, a decline in total average certificates of deposit and a shift in the mix of
certificates away from longer-term maturities to shorter-term, lower rate maturities.

Interest expense on interest-bearing demand deposits was $139,000 lower in 2002, due to a
decline in deposit rates offset by higher average balances. Interest expense on insured money
market accounts ("IMMA"), savings deposits, NOW and other deposits decreased from $854,000
in 2001 to $715,000 in 2002. The average total balances of interest-bearing demand deposits
increased $10.31 million, or 24.8%, from $41.63 million in 2001 to $51.94 million in 2002. This
increase primarily resulted from growth in the Company's Club Fed IMMA and Club Fed NOW
accounts and savings deposits. This growth was partly due to customers transferring maturing
certificates of deposit to short-term demand accounts. Club Fed is an array of products and
services provided to customers that maintain required minimum balances. Club Fed customers
receive a higher annual percentage yield on their IMMA deposits than non Club Fed customers.
The average total balance of Club Fed IMMA deposits increased $4.86 million, from $7.66
million in 2001 to $12.52 million in 2002. The average total balance of Club Fed NOW deposits
increased $2.05 million, from $7.09 million in 2001 to $9.14 million in 2002. The average total
balance of savings deposits increased $2.49 million, from $14.13 million in 2001 to $16.62
million in 2002.




The following schedule compares average total deposit balances by major categories.

Average Average
Balance Balance Percentage
2002 2001 Change Change
Insured money market deposits $ 15,952 $ 10,949 $ 5,003 45.7 %
Savings deposits 16,617 14,133 2,484 17.6
NOW and other demand deposits 19,375 16,545 2,830 17.1
Total interest-bearing demand deposits 51,944 41,627 10,317 24.8
Certificates of deposit:
Three months or less 619 271 348 128.4
Over three through six months 17,265 14,947 2,318 15.5
Over six through twelve months 8,585 9,348 (763) (8.2)
Over one through three years 26,889 35,665 (8,776) (24.6)
Over three through five years 4,500 5,496 (596) (10.8)
Over five through ten years 5,788 5,257 531 10.1
Total certificates of deposit 64,046 70,984 (6,938) (9.8)
Total interest-bearing deposits 115,990 112,611 3,379 3.0
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 11,197 10,367 830 8.0
Total deposits $127,187 $122,978 $ 4,209 3.4%

Interest expense on FHLB advances decreased $118,000, or 12.7%, from $929,000 in 2001 to
$811,000 in 2002. The Company decreased its level of borrowings during 2002 due to liquidity
being provided from other sources, mainly from loan sales. Total average FHLB advances
decreased $1.16 million, or 6.07%, from $19.06 million in 2001 to $17.90 million in 2002.

The average cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased from 4.43% in 2001 to 3.16% in
2002, due primarily to the shift in average deposits from certificates of deposit to lower-rate
interest-bearing demand deposits and the overall decline in deposit and FHLB advance interest
rates. The average cost of interest-bearing demand deposits declined from 2.05% in 2001 to
1.38% in 2002. The average cost of certificates of deposit fell from 5.69% in 2001 to 4.20% in
2002. The average cost of FHLB advances was 4.87% in 2001 and 4.53% in 2002.

Net interest income was $5,849,000 in 2001, an increase of $94,000, or 1.6% from
$5,755,000 recorded for 2000. Interest income increased $341,000, or 3.0%, in 2001, from
$11,366,000 in 2000 to $11,707,000 in 2001, primarily interest income from loans. Interest
expense increased from $5,611,000 in 2000 to $5,858,000 in 2001, an increase of $247,000, or
4.4%, due mainly to higher interest expense on FHLB advances.

Average Balance Sheet - The following table presents the average balance sheet for the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the interest on interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the related average yield or cost. The average
balances are derived from average daily balances. The yields or cost are calculated by dividing
income or expense by the average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the years
shown except where noted otherwise. The yields and costs include fees which are considered
adjustments to yields.
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Notes to Consolidated Average Balance Sheet:

(1)  Includes securities available for sale and unamortized discounts and premiums. Municipal securities
are not on a tax equivalent basis as they are not considered material.

(2)  Amount includes mortgage loans held for sale and is net of deferred loan fees, loan discounts and
premiums, loans in process, allowance for loan losses and non-performing loans. Average non-
performing loans totaled $285,000, $284,000 and $556,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

(3)  Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets

and the cost of average interest-bearing liabilities.

(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.

Rate/Volume Analysis - The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest
rates and changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have
affected the Company's interest income and expense during the periods indicated. Information is
provided in each category with respect to (i) changes attributable to changes in volume (changes
in volume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) changes attributable to changes in rate (change in rate
multiplied by prior volume); and (iii) the net change. The changes attributable to the combined
impact of volume and rate have been allocated proportionately to the changes due to volume and

the changes due to rate.

Interest-earning assets:
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Federated Liquid Cash Fund
Investment securities, net
Loans, net
FHLB stock

Total interest-earning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Insured money market deposits
Savings deposits
NOW and other demand deposits
Certificates of deposit
FHLB advances
Other interest-bearing liabilities

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net change in net interest income

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Compared to Compared to
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2041 December 31, 2000

Increase Increase
(Decrease) (Decrease)
Due to Due to
Veolume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
$ 122 $ (96) $ 26 $ 27 $ (86) % (59)
64 (94) 30) 45 2D 24
(166) %) (175) (131) 8 (123)
(324) (599) (923) 675 (179) 496
i1 (13) 2) 11 ®) 3
184 (1,288) (1,104) 631 (290) 341
136 (126) 4 32 (14) 18
43 (154) (111) (6) %) (1)
35 (67) (32) 9 (19) (10)
(367) (986) (1,353) 93) (26) (119)
(55) (63) (118) 429 (54) 375
- L)) ) 1 (7) (6)
97 (1,711) (1,614) 375 (128) 247
$ 87 § 423 $ 510 $ 256 $(162) § 94




Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $170,000 compared
to $162,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. The higher provision in 2002 was due to an
increase in the monthly provision based on the Company's analysis of the loan portfolio and the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses during the period. The Company increased the
monthly provision in 2002 primarily due to increased lending in commercial and consumer loan
categories.

Management assesses the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses based on evaluating
known and inherent risks in the loan portfolic and upon management's continuing analysis of the
factors underlying the quality of the loan portfolic. In particular, management considers the
level of non-performing loans and potential problem loans. While management believes that,
based on information currently available, the allowance for loan losses is sufficient to cover
losses inherent in its loan portfolio at this time, no assurance can be given that the level of the
allowance for loan losses will be sufficient to cover future possible loan losses incurred by the
Company or that future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses will not be necessary if
economic and other conditions differ substantially from the economic and other conditions used
by management to determine the current level of the allowance for loan losses. Management
may in the future increase the level of the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans
and non-performing loans in the event it increases the level of commercial real estate,
multifamily, or consumer lending as a percentage of its total loan portfolic. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company to provide additions to the
allowance based upon judgements different from management.

Total charge-offs for 2002 were $34,000 compared to $19,000 in 2001. The charge-offs
recorded in 2002 included one commercial loan totaling $16,000 and two consumer loans
totaling $18,000. The charge-offs for 2001 included a $12,000 commercial loan and five
consumer loans totaling $7,000. Total net charge-offs were $22,000 and $11,000 for 2002 and
2001, respectively. While Company management believes that the allowance for loan losses is
sufficient based on information currently available to it, no assurances can be made that future
events, conditions, or regulatory directives will not result in increased provisions for loan losses
or additions to the allowance for loan losses which may adversely affect net income.

Noninterest income

Noninterest income totaled $2,979,000 in 2002, compared to $2,122,000 in 2001, an increase
of $857,000, or 40.4%, primarily due to growth in insurance sales commissions and gains from
the sale of mortgage loans.

Insurance sales commissions were $1,428,000 in 2002 compared to $1,111,000 in 2001, an
increase of $317,000, or 28.5%, primarily due to commissions generated from new customers.
During 2002, the Company sold $26.67 million in one-to-four-family residential mortgage loans
to Fannie Mae recording gains of $647,000, which includes both the cash gains on the sale of
loans totaling $439,000 and the gains from capitalizing mortgage servicing rights of $208,000.
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During 2001, the Company sold $5.35 million in one-to-four-family loans recording gains of
$127,000, including cash gains of $76,000 and gains from capitalizing mortgage servicing rights
of $51,000.

Noninterest Expenses

Total noninterest expenses increased from $5,795,0600 in 2001 to $6,075,000 in 2002, an
increase of $280,000, or 4.8%, due primarily to increases in salaries and employee benefits
expense, legal and professional fees, marketing expense and other expenses, offset by a decline
in equipment expenses.

Salaries and employee benefits expense was $3,448,000 in 2002, compared to $3,248,000 in
2001, an increase of $200,000, or 6.2%. The higher expense for 2002 was due to normal salary
raises, an increase in staff at the Agency, higher health insurance expense and payroll taxes,
offset by reductions in expenses related to the employee retirement plan and the incentive plan.
Total salaries and bonuses were $2,698,000 in 2002 compared to $2,418,000 in 2001, a
difference of $280,000, or 11.6%. During 2002, the Agency hired two additional insurance
agents. Health insurance expense increased $25,000 in 2002 due to a rise in premiums and
payroll taxes increased $22,000 due to the increase in total salaries and bonuses.

Prior to July 1, 2002, the Company maintained an Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP”). Under the ESOP, the Company allocated shares of Company stock to ESOP
participants based on interest and principal payments made by the ESOP on a loan from the
Company. During 2001, the Company fully allocated the remaining shares of common stock
held by the ESOP. Effective July 1, 2002, the ESOP plan was restated to include a cash or
deferred arrangement. The new Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan, or “KSOP,”
allows employees to contribute a portion of their salary on a pretax basis with the Company
making matching contributions. The KSOP also allows the Company to make discretionary
contributions. Refer to Note 12 — “Employee Benefit Plans” of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a further discussion of the KSOP. Total expenses related to the ESOP
during 2001 totaled $325,000 and was based on the value of common shares allocated during the
year. Total expense under the KSOP for 2002 totaled $207,000 which equaled the total cash
contributions made by the Company to the plan.

Incentive plan expense decreased by $29,000, from $35,000 in 2001 to $7,000 in 2002 due to
a reduction in total shares earned by participants in 2002. The final vesting year for the majority
of participants in the incentive plan ended in February 2001.

Legal and professional expenses increased $32,000, from $212,000 in 2001 to $244,000 in
2002, mainly due to costs associated with restating the KSOP retirement plan. Marketing
expense totaled $224,000 in 2002 compared to $188,000 in 2001, increasing by $36,000 due to
greater television advertising and increased spending for promotional giveaway items.

Other expenses totaled $517,000 for 2002, an increase of $114,000 from $403,000 recorded

for 2001. Expenses included in this category that were higher in 2002 included checking account
losses, debit card expenses, and service charges related to check clearing activities. Checking
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account losses were $51,000 higher in 2002 compared to 2001 mainly due to two larger losses
being recorded. Debit card expenses were $41,000 higher in 2002. The Company implemented
the debit card program in late 2001. Service charges and fees related to check clearing activities
increased $26,000 in 2002 due mainly to a reduction in interest earned on compensating
balances, which is used to offset service charges.

Equipment expenses declined from $603,000 in 2001 to $511,000 in 2002, a decrease of
$92,000, due primarily to lower depreciation expense. Depreciation expense was lower in 2002
due mainly to the Company’s primary processing software becoming fully depreciated in 2001.
This software is an in-house system purchased by the Company in 1998.

Income Tax Expense

Total income tax expense was $1,189,600 in 2002, compared to $813,000 in 2001, an
increase of $376,000, or 46.2%. The increase is attributable to higher taxable income in 2002.
The effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were 38.4% and 40.4%,
respectively.

Financial Condition

Total consolidated assets of the Company decreased from $168.35 million as of December 31,
2001 to $167.25 million as of December 31, 2002, a decrease of $1.10 million. Assets declined
primarily in loans, mortgage loans held for sale and held-to-maturity securities, offset by an
increase in cash and cash equivalents.

Total assets associated with banking services decreased $925,000, from $168.52 million at
December 31, 2001 to $167.59 million at December 31, 2002, mainly due to a decline in net
loans, offset by an increase in cash and cash equivalents. Net loans, including mortgage loans
held for sale, decreased $21.42 million, or 14.7% from $145.41 million at December 31, 2001 to
$123.99 million at December 31, 2002. Cash and cash equivalents related to banking services
increased by $21.16 million from $11.17 million at December 31, 2001 to $32.33 million at
December 31, 2002. Investment securities decreased by $793,000, from $2.06 million at
December 31, 2001 to $1.26 million at December 31, 2002. Total deposits related to banking
services increased $4.04 million in 2002, from $127.80 million at December 31, 2001 to $131.84
million at December 31, 2002. Total Federal Home Loan Bank advances decreased $5.50
million in 2002 from $20.5 million at December 31, 2001 to $15.00 million at December 31,
2002.

Total assets related to insurance/ brokerage services increased from $968,000 at December
31, 2001 to $1.27 million at December 31, 2002, primarily cash and cash equivalents and
premiums receivable. Total liabilities related to insurance/brokerage services increased
$118,000 from $86,000 at December 31, 2001 to $204,00C at December 31, 2002, due mainly to
premiums due insurance companies.

Total consolidated cash and cash equivalents increased $21.16 million, or 189.4%, from
$11.17 million at December 31, 2001 to $32.33 million at December 31, 2002, primarily the

12




result of cash proceeds from mortgage loan sales, loan repayments, and an increase in deposits,
offset by repayments of FHLB advances and treasury stock repurchases.

Total held-to-maturity securities decreased $794,000, from $2.06 million at December 31,
2001 to $1.26 million at December 31, 2002. During 2002, the only securities held by the
Company were mortgage-backed securities. In 2002, the Company received $790,000 in
principal repayments on these securities, and recorded $4,000 in net premium amortization. At
December 31, 2002, the mortgage-backed securities had an average yield of 6.79%. The final
maturity for mortgage-backed securities totaling $739,000 is in 2029, while the remaining
$523,000 mature in 2016.

In July 2001, the Company started selling one-to-four-family fixed rate residential mortgage
loans to Fannie Mae. The Company commenced this loan sales program in order to provide
funding for additional loans and also to reduce interest rate risk due to the decline in home
mortgage interest rates during 2001. The Company continued this program in 2002 as home
mortgage rates continued to decline. During 2002, the majority of new 15-year and 30 year fixed
rate home mortgage loans were designated as held for sale. In 2002, the Company sold $26.67
million in home mortgage loans to Fannie Mae, generating proceeds of $27.79 million and
recording gains of $647,000. Mortgage loans held for sale, which includes loans committed to
be sold and loans which the Company has designated as being held for sale, totaled $1.66 million
and $2.34 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2002 and
2001, residential mortgage loans serviced for others totaled $30.68 million and $9.15 million,
respectively.

Total net loans decreased $20.72 million, or 14.5%, from $143.06 million at December 31,
2001 to $122.34 million at December 31, 2002. The following schedule shows the balances by
loan category at December 31 of each year, along with the change and percentage change:

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31, Percentage
2002 2001 Change Change
One-to-four-family mortgage loans § 60,644 § 81,657 $ (21,013) (25. 7%
Multi-family mortgage loans 20,249 19,775 474 24
Commercial mortgage loans 16,092 16,591 (499) (3.0)
Construction loans 2,077 3,907 (1,830) (46.8)
Total real estate loans 99,062 121,930 (22,868) (18.8)
Commercial loans 10,063 9,553 510 53
Consumer loans 14,399 12,620 1,779 14.1
Total loans 123,524 144,103 (20,579) (14.3)
Allowance for loan losses (1,188) (1,040) (148) 14.2
Total loans, net $ 122,336 $ 143,063 $ (20,727) (14.5)%

One-to-four-family mortgage loans, which are all loans held for investment, decreased $21.01
million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002 due to principal repayments exceeding
loan originations. The majority of new one-to-four-family residential mortgage loans in 2002
were originated for sale rather than for investment. Construction loans decreased $1.83 million
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due mainly to one large commercial project which was begun in 2001 and completed in 2002.
The balance of this loan was $1.49 million at December 31, 2001. When this commercial project
was completed in 2002, the balance of the loan, $1.67 million, was transferred to commercial
mortgage loans. Commercial mortgage loans declined $499,000 from December 31, 2001 to
December 31, 2002 mainly due to two larger payoffs totaling $2.09 million, offset by the $1.67
million construction loan which was transferred to commercial mortgage loans upon completion.

Multi-family mortgage loans increased by $474,000 from December 31, 2001 to December
31, 2002, due mainly to several smaller new loans originated in 2002. Commercial loans grew
by $510,000 from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002, due primarily to several smaller
new loans to new and existing commercial customers. Total consumer loans grew by $1.78
million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002, mainly due to new home equity loans,
offset by a decline in fixed rate secured consumer loans. Total home equity loans increased from
$2.03 million at December 31, 2001 to $4.47 million at December 31, 2002, an increase of $2.44
million. Fixed rate secured consumer loans declined $731,000 in 2002.

The allowance for loan losses increased from $1,040,000 at December 31, 2001 to $1,188,000
at December 31, 2002 due to the total provision recorded of $170,000, offset by net charge-offs
of $22,000. The allowance for loan losses is maintained to absorb loan losses based on
management's continuing review and evaluation of the loan portfolic and its judgment as to the
impact of economic conditions on the portfolio.

The Company's methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance for loan
losses consists of two key elements: specific allowances for identified problem loans and a
"formula" allowance.

Specific allowances are established in cases where management has identified significant
conditions or circumstances related to a credit that management believes indicate the probability
that a loss has been incurred. The Company identifies loans which may require a specific
allowance by reviewing all delinquent loans, significant credits, problem loans as identified by
the Company's internal grading system, loans classified as substandard, doubtful, loss, or special
mention by the Company's internal classification system, and other loans which management
may have concerns about collectibility, such as loans in a particular industry. A significant
credit for purposes of analyzing loans for a specific allowance is defined as loans in the
aggregate to an individual borrower that exceed $500,000. For individually reviewed loans, a
borrower's inability to service a credit according to the contractual terms based on the borrower's
cash flow and/or a shortfall in collateral value would result in the recording of a specific
allowance.

The formula allowance is calculated by applying risk factors to outstanding loans and certain
unused commitments, in each case based on the internal classification system of such loans, or
commitments. For purposes of applying risk factors, the Company groups loans with similar
characteristics, such as loan type, past due status or risk. Changes in risk classifications of both
performing and non-performing loans affect the amount of the formula allowance. Risk factors
are based on the Company's historical loss experience and industry averages and may be adjusted
for significant factors that, in management's judgement, affect the collectibility of the portfolio as
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of the evaluation date. These significant factors may include changes in lending policies and
procedures, changes in existing general economic and business conditions affecting the
Company’s key lending areas, credit quality trends, collateral value, loan volumes and
concentrations, seasoning of the loan portfolio, specific industry conditions within portfolio
segments, recent loss experience in particular segments of the portfolio, duration of the current
business cycle and bank regulatory examination results.

The following table sets forth the Company's allocation of the allowance for loan losses by
loan category and as a percentage of the total balance for each specific loan category as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001:

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Balance Percentage Balance Percentage

One-to-four-family mortgage loans § 124 0.20% $ 166 0.20%
Multi-family mortgage loans 42 0.21 163 0.82
Commercial mortgage loans 246 1.53 136 0.82
Construction loans 4 0.19 32 0.82
Total real estate loans 416 0.42 497 0.41
Commercial loans 450 4.47 221 2.31
Consumer loans 322 2.24 322 2.55

Total allowance for loan losses $ 1,188 0.96% $ 1,040 0.72%

The increased allocations for commercial mortgage loans and commercial loans, and the
reduction in the allocation for multi-family loans from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002
are mostly attributable to changes in risk factors based on an analysis of the Company's historical
loss experience and industry averages for losses. The increase in the allocation of the allowance
for commercial loans was also partly due to growth in this category of loans in 2002.

The following table sets forth the composition of the allowance for loan losses by each loan
category as of December 31, 2002 and 2001:

As of December 31, 2002

Formula Specific Total

One-to-four-family mortgage loans $ 124 $ -- $§ 124
Multi-family mortgage loans 42 -- 42
Commercial mortgage loans 246 -- 246
Construction loans 4 -- 4
Total real estate loans 416 -- 416
Commercial loans 450 -- 450
Consumer loans 291 31 322
Total allowance for loan losses $ 1,157 $ 31 $ 1,188
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As of December 31, 2001

Formula Specific Total

One-to-four-family mortgage loans $ 166 $ -- $ 166
Multi-family mortgage loans 163 -- 163
Commercial mortgage loans 136 -- 136
Construction loans 32 -- 32
Total real estate loans 497 -- 497
Commercial loans 216 5 221
Consumer loans 322 -- 322
Total allowance for loan losses $ 1,035 $ 5 $ 1,040

Total non-performing loans, which are loans past due $0 days or more and nonaccruing loans,
were $184,000 as of December 31, 2002 compared to $387,000 as of December 31, 2001. The
decrease in non-performing loans from 2001 to 2002 was primarily due to one residential home
loan totaling $233,000 at December 31, 2001. This loan was 90 days past due at December 31,
2001, however, the borrower brought the locan current during 2002. The ratios of the Company's
allowance for loan losses to total non-performing loans were 645.7% and 268.7% at December
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Company management and the Board of Directors perform ongoing reviews of the loan
portfolio in order to identify non-performing loans and potential problem loans. In performing
its reviews, management classifies non-performing and potential problem loans as either
substandard, doubtful, loss or watch loans. A loan is considered substandard if it is inadequately
protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral
pledged, if any. Substandard loans include those characterized by the distinct possibility that the
Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans classified as
doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard with the added
characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of
currently existing facts and conditions, highly questionable and improbable. Loans classified as
loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as loans
without the establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted. Loans which do not
currently expose the Company to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the categories
described above but possess weaknesses are classified as watch. The total of internally classified
loans equals the sum of non-performing loans and potential problem loans.
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Total classified loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are summarized as follows:

December 31 2002 2001
Watch $ 807 $ 787
Substandard 244 38
Doubtful 38 9

Total classified loans $ 1,089 $ 834
Nonperforming $§ 184 § 387
Potential problem loans 905 447

Total classified loans $ 1,089 $ 834
Impaired loans $ 24 $ 47

There were no loans considered loss as of December 31, 2002 or December 31, 2001.
Impaired loans include loans where, based on current information and events, it is probable that
the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. If the present value of expected future cash flows, or in certain instances the
observable market price of the loan or the fair value of the underlying collateral, is less than the
recorded investment in the loan, then the Company recognizes an impairment by adjusting the
allowance for loan losses with a corresponding charge to the provision for loan losses. The
allowance for impaired loans included in the Company's allowance for loan losses was $24,000
and $9,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. All loans considered impaired at
December 31, 2002 and 2001 were included in total classified loans.

Total classified assets increased $255,000, or 30.6%, from $834,000 at December 31, 2001 to
$1,089,000 at December 31, 2002. This increase was primarily due to a consumer loan to one
borrower which was classified as watch during 2002. This loan totaled $319,000 at December
31, 2002 and is secured by a first mortgage on the borrower’s primary residence. The customer
is 60 days past due at December 31, 2002; however, the customer has presented a plan to bring
the loan current by the end of the second quarter of 2003. The Company does not expect to incur
a loss related to this loan because the appraised value is sufficient to support the loan balance.

Also included in classified assets as of December 31, 2002 were loans to one borrower
totaling $401,000, which were also included as classified assets as of December 31, 2001. These
loans totaled $414,000 at December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2002, these loans included a
commercial mortgage loan for $173,000 secured by the borrower’s office and a $228,000 loan
secured by the borrower’s residence. The residential loan was 30 days delinquent at December
31, 2002. The Company does not expect to incur a loss related to these loans because the
appraised values are sufficient to support the loan balances.

Also included in classified assets at December 31, 2002 were one-to-four-family mortgage
loans totaling $275,000 to four other borrowers and consumer loans to nine other borrowers
totaling $94,000. The majority of these loans are substantially secured and the Company
anticipates that the loans will be repaid satisfactorily either from repayment by the customer or
from the sale of the underlying collateral.
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Total premises and equipment decreased $216,000 from $6.36 miilion at December 31, 2001
to $6.15 million at December 31, 2002, primarily due to depreciation expense exceeding asset
acquisitions. Fixed asset purchases totaled $270,00C in 2002 and depreciation expense was
$484,000. In 2002, fixed assets acquired included additional remodeling of the offices of the
insurance agency, various computer hardware and software, including computers, printers, and
database servers, two ATM machines, a shredder, the installation of new drive up tubes at one of
the Bank's branches, a new flagpole and one new vehicle.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock increased $61,000, or 5.2%, from $1.17 million at December
31, 2001 to $1.23 million at December 31, 2002, due to stock dividends earned.

Interest receivable declined by $106,000 from $789,000 at December 31, 2001 to $683,000 at
December 31, 2002. This decrease was mainly attributable to the general decline in interest rates
during 2002. Mortgage servicing rights increased $141,000 in 2002 due to servicing rights
capitalized of $208,000 less amortization recorded of $67,000. Other assets totaling $873,000 at
December 31, 2002 were $60,000 higher than the $813,000 balance at December 31, 2001. This
increase was primarily due to an $85,000 down payment made in December 2002 on a new item
processing system which will be installed in early 2003.

Total deposits increased by $3.75 million, from $127.54 million at December 31, 2001 to
$131.29 million at December 31, 2002. The following table summarizes the balances of deposits
at December 31, 2002 and 2001, the change in the balances and the percentage change:

Balance : Balance
December 31, December 31, Percentage
2002 2001 Change Change
Noninterest bearing checking
accounts $ 12,399 $ 11,890 $ 509 4.3%
Interest bearing:
NOW accounts 20,388 17,955 2,433 13.6
IMMA accounts 19,507 13,326 6,181 46.4
Savings accounts 17,448 15,019 2,429 16.2
Certificates of deposit 61,549 69,350 (7,801) (11.2)
Total interest bearing deposits 118,892 115,650 3,242 2.8
Total deposits $ 131,291 $ 127,540 § 3,751 2.9%

Growth in NOW and IMMA accounts occurred primarily in the Company's Club Fed
deposit products, due mainly to customers transferring proceeds from maturing certificates of
deposit into demand accounts. The Company's Club Fed products provide enhanced services to
customers including a higher rate of interest for maintaining required minimum balances. Club
Fed NOW accounts increased $1.49 million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002
while Club Fed IMMA deposits increased $6.30 million. Regular NOW accounts also increased
in 2002, by $788,000 from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002. Savings accounts
increased $2.43 million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002 also due to customers
transferring maturing certificates of deposit.
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Because of the low interest rate environment experienced during 2002, customers transferred
proceeds from maturing certificates into shorter-term certificates of deposit and demand deposits.
Customers moved their deposits into short-term categories in anticipation that rates will begin to
rise in the near future. Total certificates of deposit declined $7.80 million from December 31,
2001 to December 31, 2002, mainly certificates maturing in from one-year to four-years. The
largest decline was in two-year certificates, which decreased $5.71 million, from $14.37 million
at December 31, 2001 to $8.66 million at December 31, 2002. One-year certificates of deposit
declined $2.11 million from $10.07 million at December 31, 2001 to $7.96 million at December
31, 2002. Eighteen-month certificates decreased $1.69 million, from $13.76 million at
December 31, 2001 to $12.07 million at December 31, 2002. Total six month certificates of
deposit increased $1.58 million from $17.08 million at December 31, 2001 to $18.66 million at
December 31, 2002.

FHLB advances decreased $5.5 million, from $20.50 million at December 31, 2001 to $15.0
million at December 31, 2002 due to maturing advances exceeding new borrowings during 2002.
During 2002, new advances entered into by the Company totaled $2.00 million and advances
totaling $7.50 million matured or were called. The following schedule presents FHLB advances
at December 31, 2002, by maturity date:

Date Fixed First

of Interest or Maturity Call
Advance Rate Variable Date Date Amount
March 2002 3.06% Fixed March 2003 non callable $ 1,000
March 2002 3.58 Fixed September 2003 non callable 1,000
October 1998 4.30 Fixed October 2008  January 2003 5,000
January 2001 4.55 Fixed January 2011  January 2003 5,000
September 2001 3.80 Fixed September 2011  September 2004 3,000

§ 15,000

Proceeds from advances have provided liquidity for loans and treasury stock purchases.
The Company reduced the level of FHLB advances during 2002 due to growth in deposits and
proceeds from loan sales providing liquidity. The $10.00 million in advances callable in January
2003 are callable quarterly. These advances were not called in January 2003.

Deferred compensation - directors decreased slightly from December 31, 2001 to December
31, 2002 due to payments to retired directors exceeding the sum of fees deferred and interest
accrued on deferred balances. The Company deferred fees totaling $43,000, accrued interest to
the plan of $30,000 and paid retired directors a total of $76,000 in 2002. Premiums due
insurance companies increased $100,000 in 2002 due mainly to the timing of payments to
insurance companies.

Total stockholders' equity increased from $18.56 million at December 31, 2001 to $18.94
million at December 31, 2002, an increase of $379,000, or 2.0%. This increase resulted from net
income of $1,904,000, plus incentive plan shares earned of $7,000 and stock options exercised




totaling $42,000, less $368,000 in dividends declared and $1.21 million in treasury stock
purchased.

In Cctober 2002, the Company announced a 5% common stock repurchase program which
was equal to 41,150 shares. In January 2003, the Company completed a 5% stock repurchase
program which was announced in December 2001. This program was for a total of 43,358
shares, which the Company repurchased at an average price of $24.96 per share. In February
2003, the Company announced an additional 5% stock repurchase program equal to 38,875
shares. As of February 28, 2003, the Company had repurchased a total of 38,746 shares related
to the programs announced in October 2002 and February 2003, at an average price of $29.73
per share. As of February 28, 2003, there were 41,279 shares remaining to be repurchased under
these programs. All repurchased shares will be held as treasury shares to be used for issuing
stock under stock option agreements and for general corporate purposes.

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and conform to general practices within the
banking industry. The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in detail in the
notes to the Company’s consclidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions. The financial position and
results of operations can be affected by these estimates and assumptions and are integral to the
understanding of reported results.  Critical accounting policies are those policies that
management believes are the most important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial
condition and results, and they require management to make estimates that are difficult,
subjective, or complex.

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses provides coverage for probable
losses inherent in the Company’s loan portfolio. Management evaluates the adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses each quarter based on changes, if any, in underwriting activities, the
loan portfolio composition (including product mix and geographic, industry or customer-specific
concentrations), trends in loan performance, regulatory guidance and economic factors. This
evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires the use of significant management estimates.
Many factors can affect management’s estimates of specific and expected losses, including
volatility of defaunlt probabilities, rating migrations, loss severity and economic and political
conditions. The allowance is increased through provisions charged to operating earnings and
reduced by net charge-offs.

The Company determines the amount of the allowance based on relative risk characteristics of
the loan portfolio. The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on reviews of
individual credit relationships and an analysis of the migration of commercial loans and actual
loss experience. The allowance recorded for homogeneous consumer loans is based on an
analysis of loan mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio, fraud loss and bankruptcy experiences,
and historical losses, adjusted for current trends, for each homogeneous category or group of
loans. The allowance for credit losses relating to impaired loans is based on the lgoan’s
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observable market price, the collateral for certain collateral-dependent loans, or the discounted
cash flows using the loan’s effective interest rate.

Regardless of the extent of the Company’s analysis of customer performance, portfolio trends
or risk management processes, certain inherent but undetected losses are probable within the loan
portfolio. This is due to several factors including inherent delays in obtaining information
regarding a customer’s financial condition or changes in their unique business conditions, the
judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of
economic trends. Volatility of economic or customer-specific conditions affecting the
identification and estimation of losses for larger non-homogeneous credits and the sensitivity of
assumptions utilized to establish allowances for homogenous groups of loans are among other
factors. The Company estimates a range of inherent losses related to the existence of these
exposures. The estimates are based upon the Company’s evaluation of imprecision risk
associated with the commercial and consumer allowance levels and the estimated impact of the
current economic environment.

Morigage Servicing Rights - Mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) associated with loans
originated and sold, where servicing is retained, are capitalized and included in the consolidated
balance sheet. The value of the capitalized servicing rights represents the present value of the
future servicing fees arising from the right to service loans in the portfolio. Critical accounting
policies for MSRs relate to the initial valuation and subsequent impairment tests. The
methodology used to determine the valuation of MSRs requires the development and use of a
number of estimates, including anticipated principal amortization and prepayments of that
principal balance. Events that may significantly affect the estimates used are changes in interest
rates, mortgage loan prepayment speeds and the payment performance of the underlying loans.
The carrying value of the MSRs is periodically reviewed for impairment based on a
determination of fair value. For purposes of measuring impairment, the servicing rights are
compared to a valuation prepared based on a discounted cash flow methodology, utilizing current
prepayment speeds and discount rates. Impairment, if any, is recognized through a valuation
allowance and is recorded as amortization of intangible assets.

Postretirement Benefit Obligation - Management obtains an independent actuarial
calculation to estimate the postretirement benefit obligation. The calculation is largely
dependent on estimates relating to future health care cost trends and the number of employees
that will retire and be eligible for benefits under the plan.

Liguidity and Capital Resources of the Company and Bank

The Bank's primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans,
proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale and proceeds from FHLB advances. While
maturities and scheduled amortization of loans are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows
and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions,
and competition. The Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS") is the Bank's primary regulator.
OTS regulations now require the Bank to maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure its safe and
sound operation. The Bank's liquidity ratios were 24.24% and 9.36% at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively. The primary source of funding for the Company is dividend payments from

21



the Bank, principal and interest payments on loans purchased from the Bank and, to a lesser
extent, earnings on investments and deposits held by the Company. Dividend payments by the
Bank have primarily been used to fund stock repurchase programs. The OTS limits all capital
distributions by the Bank directly or indirectly to the Company, including dividend payments.
As the subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company, the Bank must file a notice, which is
subject to disapproval, with the OTS prior to each proposed capital distribution. However, if the
total amount of all capital distributions (including each proposed capital distribution) for the
applicable calendar year exceeds net income to date for that year plus the retained net income
(i.e. net income after deducting prior capital distributions) for the preceding two years, or if the
amount of the proposed capital distribution would cause the Bank to fail to remain "adequately
capitalized" under applicable laws and regulations, then the Bank must file an application to
receive the approval of the OTS for the proposed capital distribution. As of December 31, 2002,
the Bank could pay a total of $619,000 in dividends to the Company without prior application to
and approval from the OTS. The Company i1s not required to maintain a minimum level of
regulatory liquidity.

The primary investment activity of the Bank is the origination of mortgage loans and
commercial and consumer loans, and to a lesser extent the purchase of mortgage-backed
securities. Asset acquisitions during the year ended December 31, 2002 were primarily funded
by deposits and proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale. Asset acquisitions during
the year ended December 31, 2001 were primarily funded by deposits, FHLB advances and
proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale. The primary investment activity of the
Company is the investment in the Bank's stock and purchases of loans from the Bank.

A review of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows included in the accompanying
financial statements shows that the Company's cash and cash equivalents ("cash") increased
$21.17 million and $523,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
respectively. Cash increased in 2002 due to net cash provided by operating activities of $3.39
million and net cash provided by investing activities of $21.12 million, offset by net cash used by
financing activities of $3.34 million. Cash provided by operating activities included net income
of $1,904,000, plus non cash adjustments to net income including proceeds from sales of loans
totaling $27.79 million, depreciation expense of $484,000, the provision for loan losses of
$170,000, and an increase in other liabilities of $331,000, less loans originated for sale of $26.67
million and net gains on sales of loans of $647,000. Net cash provided by investing activities
included $20.60 million net collections of loans. Net cash used by financing activities included a
$7.80 million decrease in certificates of deposits, $7.50 million in repayment of FHLB advances,
$1.21 million in treasury stock repurchased and $373,000 in dividends paid, offset by an $11.55
million increase in demand deposits, money market, NOW, and savings accounts and $2.00
million generated from FHLB advances.

Cash increased in 2001 due to net cash provided by operating activities of $117,000 and net
cash provided by financing activities of $7.13 million, offset by net cash used by investing
activities of $6.73 million. Cash provided by operating activities included net income of
$1,201,000, plus non cash adjustments to net income including proceeds from sales of loans
totaling $5.48 million, the provision for loan losses of $162,000, depreciation expense of
$592,000 and ESOP expense of $325,000, less loans originated for sale of $7.69 million. Net




cash provided by financing activities included a $5.85 million increase in demand deposits,
money market, NOW, and savings accounts and $13.50 million generated from FHLB advances,
offset by a $2.00 million decline in certificates of deposit, $7.00 million in FHLB advances that
matured in 2001, $421,000 in cash dividends paid, and the purchase of treasury stock totaling
$2.82 million. Cash used by investing activities included $10.46 million in net originations of
loans, $211,000 purchase of FHLB stock and $152,000 in purchases of premises and equipment,
offset by proceeds from maturing available-for-sale securities of $3.00 million, proceeds from
maturities of held-to-maturity securities of $425,000 and principal repayments of mortgage-
backed securities totaling $672,000.

At December 31, 2002, the Bank exceeded all of its regulatory capital requirements with
tangible capital and tier 1 capital both at $11.12 million or 7.0% of adjusted total assets and risk-
based capital at $12.29 million or 13.0% of total risk-weighted assets. The required ratios are
1.5% for tangible capital to adjusted total assets, 4.0% for tier 1 capital to average assets and
8.0% for risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets. See Note 10 -- "Regulatory Matters" in the
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Bank's capital calculations as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The Bank's most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents. The level of cash and cash
equivalents is dependent on the Bank's operating, financing, lending and investing activities
during any given period. At December 31, 2002, cash and cash equivalents totaled $32.33
million. The Company's and Bank's future short-term requirements for cash are not expected to
significantly change. However, in the event that the Bank should require funds beyond its ability
to generate them internally, additional sources of funds are available, such as FHLB advances.
With no parent company debt and sound capital levels, the Company has several options for
longer-term cash needs, such as for future expansion and acquisitions. These options include
issuing debt securities, raising equity capital if market conditions are favorable and issuing trust
preferred securities.

Management is not aware of any current recommendations or government proposals which if
implemented would have a material effect on the Company's liquidity, capital resources or
operations.

Management of Interest Rate Risk

The principal objective of the Company's interest rate risk management function is to evaluate
the interest rate risk included in certain balance sheet accounts, determine the level of risk
appropriate given the Company's business focus, operating environment, capital and liquidity
requirements and performance objectives, establish asset concentration guidelines and manage
the risk consistent with Board-approved guidelines. Through such management, the Company
seeks to reduce the vulnerability of its operations to changes in interest rates and to manage the
ratio of interest rate sensitive assets to interest rate sensitive liabilities within specified maturities
or repricing dates. The Company's Board of Directors has established an Asset/Liability
Committee consisting of management officers, which is responsible for reviewing the
Company's asset/liability policies and interest rate risk position. Such committee generally
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meets on a quarterly basis, and at other times as dictated by market conditions, and reports to the
Board of Directors after each such meeting.

The Company's interest rate risk strategy primarily consists of: (i} emphasizing the attraction
and retention of core deposits, which tend to be a more stable source of funding; (ii) emphasizing

the origination of short-term multi-family residential loans, commercial mortgage loans, and
commercial loans, the origination of which is largely dependent on the market demand for such
loans; (iii) when market conditions are favorable and in consideration of the regulatory
requirements relating to required levels of residential loans which must be maintained by the
Bank, selling fixed-rate one-to-four-family mortgage loans; (iv) investing primarily in mortgage-
backed securities; and (v} using FHLB advances as a funding source when rates on FHLB
advances compare favorably to local competitive deposit rates. As a traditional thrift lender, the
Company has a significant amount of its earning assets invested in fixed-rate mortgages with
contractual maturities greater than one year. At December 31, 2002, an aggregate of $63.76
million, or 38.1% of total assets, were invested in such assets.

The following table sets forth the amounts of interest-earning assets a and interest-bearing
liabilities outstanding at December 31, 2002 which mature or reprice in the periods shown.
Except as stated in the table, the amount of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature
during a particular period were determined in accordance with the earlier of term to repricing or
the contractual maturity.
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The Company tends to be liability sensitive due to the levels of short-term NOW, savings and
insured money market deposits maintained. However, the effect of rate increases on these
deposits, which are mainly core retail deposits, tends to lag behind the change in market rates.
This lag generally lessens the negative impact on net interest income during a period of rising
interest rates. Based on the information provided in the table, assuming no management
intervention, the effect of an increase in interest rates of 100 basis points would reduce
annualized net interest income by approximately $281,000 in the one month category or
approximately $355,000 in the three month category. A decrease in interest rates would have the
opposite effect.

Management believes that the assumptions used to evaluate interest rate sensitivity
approximate actual experience and considers this method a reasonable tool; however, the interest
rate sensitivity of the Company's assets and liabilities and the estimated effects of changes in
interest rates on net interest income could vary substantially if different assumptions were used
or actual experience differs from the historical experiences on which these assumptions were
based.




Independent Accountants' Report

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Great American Bancorp, Inc.
Champaign, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Great American Bancorp, Inc.
as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Great American Bancorp, Inc. as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

BKD, LLP

3 KE; RN

Decatur, Illinois
February 10, 2003
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GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2002 and 2§01
(in thousands, except share data)
2002 2001
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 4,990 $ 4,832
Interest-bearing demand deposits 27,344 6,334
Cash and cash equivalents 32,334 11,166
Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of $1,329 and
$2,090 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) 1,262 2,056
Mortgage loans held for sale 1,658 2,343
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,188 and
$1,040 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively 122,336 143,063
Premises and equipment 6,146 6,362
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,227 1,166
Interest receivable 683 789
Cash value of life insurance 268 251
Insurance premiums receivable 225 204
Deferred income taxes 46 81
Mortgage servicing rights 192 51
Other 873 813
Total assets $ 167,250 $ 168,345
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing deposits $ 12,399 $ 11,890
Interest-bearing deposits
Savings, NOW and money market 57,343 46,300
Time 61,549 69,350
Total deposits 131,291 127,540
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 15,000 20,500
Deferred compensation - directors 645 648
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance 265 319
Accrued postretirement benefit obligation 255 211
Accrued real estate taxes 138 136
Premiums due insurance companies 201 101
Dividend payable 90 95
Income taxes payable 55 23
Interest payable 62 91
Cther 310 122
Total liabilities 148,312 149,786
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value
Authorized and unissued - 1,000,000 shares
Common stock, $0.01 par value
Authorized - 7,000,000 shares
Issued - 2,052,750 shares
Outstanding: 2002 - 818,490 shares, 2001 - 867,167 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost
Common: 2002 — 1,234,260 shares, 2001 - 1,185,583 shares
Unearned incentive plan shares: 2002 — 4,589, 2001 - 5,010 shares
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ - $ -

21 21

20,166 20,165

19,374 17,838

39,561 38,024
(20,557) (19,393)
(66) (72)

18,938 18,559

$ 167,250 $ 168,345




GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands, except share data)

Interest Income
Loans
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Deposits with banks and other

Total interest income

Interest Expense
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Other

Total interest expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses
Noninterest Income
Insurance sales commissions
Brokerage commissions
Customer service fees
Other service charges and fees
Net gains on loan sales
Loan servicing fees

QOther

Total noninterest income

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2002 2001
$ 18,215 $ 11,138
—~ 120

108 163
286 286
16,603 11,707
3,403 4,895
811 929
30 34
4,244 5,858
6,359 5,849
178 162
6,189 5,687
1,428 1,111
99 122
598 573
212 164
647 127
(13) 13

8 12
2,979 2,122




Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Net occupancy expense
Equipment expense
Data processing fees
Deposit insurance premium
Printing and office supplies
Legal and professional fees
Directors and committee fees
Insurance expense
Marketing and advertising expense
Other

Total noninterest expenses
Income Before Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes
Net Income

Other Comprehensive Income

Unrealized depreciation on available-for-sale securities,
net of income tax credit of $4 for 2001

Comprehensive Income
Basic Earnings per Share

Diluted Eamnings per Share

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ 3,448 3,248
570 588
511 603
72 76
22 23
283 299
244 212
119 100
65 55
224 188
517 403
6,075 5,795
3,093 2,014
1,189 813

$ 1,904 1,201

- )

? 1,904 1,196

$ 2.28 1.29

$ 209 1.25
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GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands)

Operating Activities
Net income
Ttems not requiring (providing) cash
Depreciation expense
Provision for loan losses
Amortization of premiums and discounts on securities
Amortization of loan-servicing rights
Amortization of deferred loan fees
Deferred income taxes
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends
Employees stock ownership plan compensation expense
Incentive plan expense
Net gains on loan sales
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds from loan sales
Net gain on sales of premises and equipment
Changes in
Interest receivable
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Interest payable
Other liabilities
Income taxes payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity securities
Proceeds from paydowns of mortgage backed securities
Net (originations) collections of loans
Purchase of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Financing Activities
Net increase in demand deposits, money market, NOW and savings accounts
Net decrease in certificates of deposit
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Proceeds from stock options exercised
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid
Net increase (decrease) in advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year
Supplemental Cash Flows Information
Interest paid

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2062 2001
$ 1,964 $ 1,201
484 592
170 162
4 -
67 5
(39) (34)
35 48
(61) (65)
- 325

7 35
647) (127)
(26,665) (7,692)
27,789 5,476
) -
106 80
- 116
(8) (29)
(29) 11
331 (10)

32 23
3,388 117
- 3,000
- 425
796 672
20,596 (10,460)
270) (152)
4 -

- (211)
21,126 (6,726)
11,552 5,853
(7,801) (1,998)
2,600 13,500
(7,500) (7,000)
42 -
(1,206) (2,823)
(373) 421)
(54) 21
(3,340) 7,132
21,168 523
11,166 10,643
$ 32,334 $ 11,166
$ 4273 $ 5,847
1,122 626




GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2002 and 2061

(Table dollar amounts in thousands, except share data)

Note [: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Great American Bancorp, Inc. (“Company”) is a savings and loan holding company whose
principal activity is the ownership and management of First Federal Savings Bank of
Champaign-Urbana (“Bank™). The Bank operates under a federal savings charter and provides
full banking and mortgage services to individual and corporate customers in Champaign County,
[llinois and surrounding counties. The Company and Bank are subject to competition from other
financial institutions. The Company and Bank are subject to the regulation of certain federal
agencies and undergo periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities.

The Bank’s subsidiary, Park Avenue Service Corporation (“PASC”), offers insurance and
brokerage services to customers located primarily in Champaign County, Illinois and
surrounding counties. GTPS Insurance Agency, a division of PASC, sells a variety of insurance
products to both individuals and businesses, including life, health, auto, property and casualty
insurance. PASC also provides full service brokerage activities through a third-party broker-
dealer and engages in the sale of tax deferred annuities. The revenue generated by PASC is
dependent upon maintaining relationships with the current insurance and brokerage providers.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, the Bank, and the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, PASC. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the
determination of the allowance for loan losses, mortgage servicing rights, and postretirement
benefit obligation. In connection with the determination of the allowance for lcan losses,
management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties. Management estimates
mortgage servicing rights taking into consideration changes in interest rates, current prepayment
rates and expected future cash flows. Management obtains an actuarial calculation to estimate
the postretirement benefit obligation.
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Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, cash equivalents consisted of interest-
bearing demand deposits held primarily at the Federal Home Loan Bank and in a money market
fund.

Securities

Held-to-maturity securities, which include any security for which the Company has the
positive intent and ability to hold until maturity, are carried at historical cost adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. Premiums and discounts are amortized
and accreted, respectively, to interest income using the level-yield method over the period to
maturity.

Interest and dividends on investments in debt and equity securities are included in income
when earned.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the
lower of cost or fair value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through
a valuation allowance by charges to income.

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until
maturity or payoffs are reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for any charge-
offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest
income is reported on the interest method and includes amortization of net deferred loan fees and
costs over the loan term. Generally, loans are placed on non-accrual status at ninety days past
due and interest is considered a loss, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of
collection.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a
provision for loan losses charged to income. Loan losses are charged against the allowance
when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based
upon management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the
borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic
conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available.
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A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on
a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and
the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior
payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.
Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the
loan’s obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential
loans for impairment disclosures.

Premises and Equipment

Depreciable assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged
to expense using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over the terms of
the respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal Home Loan Bank stock is stated at cost and is a required investment for institutions
that are members of the Federal Home Loan Bank system. The required investment in the
common stock is based on a predetermined formula.

Mortgage-Servicing Rights

Mortgage-servicing rights on originated loans that have been scld are capitalized by
allocating the total cost of the mortgage loans between the mortgage-servicing rights and the
loans based on their relative fair values. Capitalized servicing rights are amortized in proportion
to and over the period of estimated servicing revenues. Impairment of mortgage-servicing rights
is assessed based on the fair value of those rights. Fair values are estimated using discounted
cash flows based on a current market interest rate. For purposes of measuring impairment, the
rights are stratified based on the predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans. The
predominant characteristic currently used for stratification is type of loan. The amount of
impairment recognized is the amount by which the capitalized mortgage-servicing rights for a
stratum exceed their fair value.
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Fee Income

Loan origination fees, net of direct origination costs, are recognized as income using the
level-yield method over the term of the loans. Loan servicing income represents fees earned for
servicing real estate mortgage loans owned by various investors.

Treasury Stock
Treasury stock is stated at cost. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method.
Incentive Plan

The Company accounts for its stock award program, or incentive plan, in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 25. The purchase price of unearned shares
owned by the incentive plan is reflected as a reduction of stockholders' equity. Compensation
expense 1s based on the market price of the Company's stock on the date the shares are granted
and is recorded over the vesting period. The difference between the aggregate purchase price
and the fair value on the date granted of the shares earned is recorded as an adjustment to paid-in
capital.

Stock Options

The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan, which is described more fully
in Note 12. The Company accounts for this plan under the recognition and measurement
principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all
options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the grant date. The following table illustrates the effect on net
income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value provisions of FASB
Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee
compensation.

Year Ended December 31
2002 2001
Net income as reported $ 1,904 $ 1201
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation cost determined
under the fair value based method, net of income taxes 0 (38)
Pro forma net income $ 1,897 $ 1,163
Earnings per share:
Basic - as reported $ 228 $ 129
Basic - pro forma $ 227 $ 125
Diluted - as reported $  2.09 § 125
Diluted - pro forma $ 2.08 $ 121
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Postretirement Benefits

The Company is recognizing the transition obligation using the straight-line method over the
plan participants' remaining average future service period.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax effects of differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established to
reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be
realized. The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiary.
Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share have been computed based upon the weighted-average comimon
shares outstanding during each year. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution
that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or
converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the
earnings of the Company.

Employee stock ownership plan ("ESOP") shares are considered outstanding for earnings per
share calculations as they are committed to be released; uncommitted shares are not considered
outstanding.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 financial statements to conform to the
2002 financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on net income.

Note 2: Restriction on Cash and Due from Banks

The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposit with the Federal
Reserve Bank. The reserve required at December 31, 2002 was $1,050,000.

Note 3: Investments
Held-to-Maturity Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of securities classified as held-to-maturity are
as follows:

December 31, 2002
Gross Gross Approximate
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
Mortgage-backed securities $ 1,262 $ 67 $ -- $ 1,329
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Mortgage-backed securities

December 31, 2001

Gross Gross  Approximate
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
$ 2,056 $ 34 $ $ 2,090

The Company did not hold any securities of a single issuer, payable from and secured by
the same source of revenue or taxing authority, the book value of which exceeded 10% of

stockholders' equity at December 31, 2002.

Note 4: Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Categories of loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001, include:

First mortgage loans (principally conventional)

Principal balances

Secured by one-to-four-family residences

Secured by other properties
Construction loans

Less
Net deferred loan origination fees
Total first mortgage loans
Commercial and consumer loans
Principal balances
Commercial
Consumer
Total commercial and consumer loans
Total loans

Less allowance for loan losses

Net loans

2002 2001
$ 60,692 $ 81,725
36,341 36,366
2,077 3,907
99,110 121,998
(48) (68)
99,062 121,930
16,063 9,553
14,399 12,620
24,462 22,173
123,524 144,103
(1,188) (1,040)
$ 122,336 $ 143,063
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Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:

2002 2001
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,040 $ 889
Provision charged to expense 170 162
Losses charged off, net of recoveries of $12 for
2002 and $8 for 2001 (22) (11)
Balance, end of year $ 1,188 $ 1,040

Impaired loans totaled $24,000 and $47,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
An allowance for loan losses of $24,000 and $9,000 relates to impaired loans of $24,000 and
$17,000, at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2001, impaired loans
of $30,000 had no related allowance for loan losses.

Interest of $3,000 and $7,000 was recognized on average impaired loans of $38,000 and
$175,000, for 2002 and 2001, respectively. Interest of $3,000 and $7,000 was recognized on
impaired loans on a cash basis during 2002 and 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, accruing loans delinquent 90 days or more totaled $178,000

and $387,000, respectively. Non-accruing loans at December 31, 2002 totaled $6,0060. There
were no non-accruing loans at December 31, 2001.

Note §: Premises and Equipment

Major classifications of premises and equipment, stated at cost, are as follows:

2002 2001
Land $ 1,545 $ 1,545
Buildings and improvements 5,319 5,252
Leasehold improvements 870 867
Equipment 3,004 2,825
10,738 10,489

Less accumulated depreciation (4,592) (4,127)
Net premises and equipment $ 6,146 A 6,362

Note 6: Loan Servicing
Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets. The unpaid principal balances of mortgage loans serviced for others was
$30,683,000 and $9,146,000 at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, respectively.
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Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with the foregoing loan servicing, and
included in demand deposits, were approximately $340,000 and $33,000 at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

The aggregate fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights at December 31, 2002 and
2001 totaled $192,000 and $51,000, respectively. Comparable market values and a valuation
model that calculates the present value of future cash flows were used to estimate fair value. For
purposes of measuring impairment, risk characteristics including product type, investor type, and
interest rates, were used to stratify the originated mortgage servicing rights.

Information on mortgage servicing rights is presented below:

2002 2001
Mortgage Servicing Rights

Balance, beginning of year $ 51 $ 5

Servicing rights capitalized 208 51
Amortization of servicing rights (67) %)

192 51

Valuation allowance -- --

Balance, end of year $ 192 $ 51

Note 7: Deposits

Deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more were $24,814,000 on December 31, 2002 and
$20,364,000 on December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2002, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

2003 $ 42,524
2004 10,924
2005 4,499
2006 2,032
2007 400
Thereafter 1,170

$ 61,546

Note 8: Federal Home Loan Rank Advances

Federal Home Loan Bank advances at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

2002 2001
Federal Home Loan Bank advances, variable and fixed
rates, (3.06% to 4.55% at December 31, 2002) due at
various dates through September 2011 $ 15,000 $ 20,500
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Aggregate annual maturities of Federal Home Loan Bank advances at December 31, 2002,
are:

2003 $ 2,000
2008 5,000
Thereafter 8,000

$ 15,000

Federal Home Loan Bank advances are secured by mortgage loans totaling $61,872,000 at
December 31, 2002. Advances are subject to restrictions or penalties in the event of prepayment.
The Company has a $5,000,000 advance maturing in 2008 and an additional $5,000,000 advance
maturing in 2011 that are callable on a quarterly basis. The rate on the $5,000,000 advance
maturing in 2008 is 4.30% and the rate on the $5,000,000 advance maturing in 2011 is 4.55%. A
$3,000,000 advance maturing in 2011 is also callable on a one-time basis in September 2004 and
has a rate of 3.80%.

Note 9: Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes these components:

2002 2001

Taxes currently payable
Federal $ 947 $ 630
State 207 135

Deferred income taxes

Federal 28 36
State 7 9
Income tax expense $ 1,189 $ 813

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Company’s actual income
tax expense is shown below:

2002 2001

Computed at the statutory rate (34%) $ 1,052 $ 685
Increase (decrease) resulting from

State income taxes 141 95

Allocating ESOP shares -- 31

Other @) 2

Actual tax expense $ 1,189 $ 813
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The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the balance sheets
were:

2602 2001
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses $ 449 $ 381
Deferred compensation 250 251
Postretirement benefit obligation 99 82
Deferred loan fees 11 17
809 731
Deferred tax liabilities
Federal Home Loan Bank stock (%94) (69)
Depreciation (857} (538)
Mortgage servicing rights (74) (20)
Other (38) (23)
(763) (650)
Net deferred tax asset $ 46 $ 81

Retained earnings at December 31, 2002 and 2001 include approximately $4,300,000 for
which no deferred income tax liability has been recognized. This amount represents an
allocation of income to bad debt deductions as of December 31, 1987 for tax purposes only.
Reduction of amounts so allocated for purposes other than tax bad debt losses or adjustments
arising from carryback of net operating losses would create income for tax purposes only, which
income would be subject to the then-current corporate income tax rate. The deferred income tax
liability on the preceding amount that would have been recorded if they were expected to reverse
into taxable income in the foreseeable future was approximately $1,669,000 at December 31,
2002 and 2C01.

Note 10: Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier I capital
(as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as
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defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the Office of Thrift Supervision
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based,
Tier I risk-based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or
events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.

The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table.

To Be Well Capitalized
For Capital Adequacy Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2002
Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 12,292 13.0% $ 7,550 8.0% $ 9,438 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 11,121 11.8 3,775 4.0 5,663 6.0
Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets) 11,121 7.0 6,401 4.0 8,001 5.0
Tangible Capital
(to Adjusted Total Assets) 11,121 7.0 2,400 1.5 N/A
As of December 31, 2001
Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 10,825 10.9% $ 7934 8.0% $ 9918 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 9,790 9.9 3,967 4.0 5,951 6.0
Tier 1 Capital
(to Average Assets) 9,790 6.1 6,404 4.0 8,006 5.0
Tangible Capital
(to Adjusted Total Assets) 9,790 6.1 2401 1.5 N/A

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare
without prior regulatory approval. At December 31, 2002, there was $619,000 in retained
earnings available for dividend declaration without prior regulatory approval.
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Note 11: Related Party Transactions

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had loans outstanding to executive officers,
directors and their affiliates (related parties) in the amount of $1,413,000 and $1,297,000,
respectively.

The aggregate amount of loans, as defined, to such related parties were as follows:

Balances, January 1, 2002 $ 1,297
Change in composition of related parties 56
New loans, including renewals 662
Payments, etc. (605)
Balances, December 31, 2002 $ 1,413

In management's opinion, such loans and other extensions of credit and deposits were made in
the ordinary course of business and were made on substantially the same terms (including
interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other
persons. Further, in management's opinion, these loans did not involve more than normal risk of
collectibility or present other unfavorable features.

Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December 31, 2002 and 2001 totaled
$711,000 and $513,000, respectively.

Note 12: Employee Benefit Plams

Prior to July 1, 2002, the Company had an employee stock ownership plan ("ESOP")
covering substantially all of its employees. The ESOP borrowed $1,642,000 from the Company
and used those funds to acquire 164,220 shares of the Company's common stock at $10 per
share. The ESOP covered employees who completed at least twelve consecutive months of
service for the Bank during which the employee performed at least 1,000 hours of service. A
participant was 100 percent vested after seven years of credited service.

The ESCP shares were held in trust and allocated to ESOP participants based on the interest
and principal payments made by the ESOP on the loan from the Company. The loan, which was
repaid during 2001, was secured by shares purchased with the loan proceeds and was repaid by
the ESOP with funds from the Company's discretionary contributions to the ESOP and earnings
on ESOP assets. Dividends on unallocated ESOP shares were applied to reduce the loan.
Principal payments occurred in even annual amounts over a seven year period.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, there were no shares committed to be released
into the ESOP. During the year ended December 31, 2001, 19,748 shares of stock with an
average fair value of $16.46 were committed to be released, resulting in ESOP compensation
expense of $325,000.
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The following table reflects the shares held by the plan as of and for the years ended

December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Shares earned by participants - 164,220
Shares distributed to participants (8,821) (24,752)

Shares transferred to new plan (130,647) --

Total ESOP shares - 139,468

Effective July 1, 2002, the Board of Directors restated the plan to include a cash or deferred
arrangement. The new Employee Savings and Stock Ownership Plan ("KSOP") covers
substantially all Company employees. The plan contains 401(k) features that qualify the plan
under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows employees to contribute up to
15% of their salary on a pretax basis. The Company then makes a matching contribution of
100% on the first 3% of an employee’s contribution and 50% on the next 2% of an employee’s
contribution. The Company will also contribute an amount equal to 3% of each eligible
participant’s salary, even if an employee elects not to defer any of their own salary into the plan
(“safe harbor contribution™). The Company can also elect to contribute discretionary amounts at
any time. Each participant may direct the investment of their own contributions to a variety of
mutual funds offered and maintained by the trustee of the plan, including a stock fund of the
Company (the “employer stock fund”). The Company matching contributions, safe harbor
contributions, and any discretionary contributions are invested in the employer stock fund.

At December 31, 2002, 139,023 shares of the Company's stock were owned by the plan. The
cost of the plan is borne by the Company through contributions to the KSOP trust in amounts
determined by the Board of Directors. The Company's expense for the plan was $207,000 for
2002.

The Company also has a stock-based compensation program which provides for the granting
of stock of the Company as stock awards and options to purchase stock of the Company (the
"Incentive Plan").

The Incentive Plan covers key employees and directors and is authorized to acquire and grant
as stock awards 82,110 shares of the Company's common stock or 4 percent of the shares issued
in the Company's initial public offering. The 82,110 shares were acquired in 1997 by funds
contributed by the Company. Participants in the Incentive Plan vest at a rate of 20 percent per
year commencing one year after the date such shares are granted. In the event of a change in
control or death or disability, all unvested stock awards would vest immediately.




The following is a summary of the status of the stock awards and changes in the stock awards
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2462 2001
Stock Awards: Shares Shares
Outstanding, beginning of year 2,289 15,139
Granted - 1,200
Distributed (1,329) (14,050)
Outstanding, end of year 960 2,289
Shares available for future stock awards 3,829 3,829
Total stock awards 4,789 6,118

During the year ended December 31, 2002, 421 shares representing stock awards were earned
by participants and resulted in compensation expense of $7,000. For the year ended December
31, 2001, 2,367 shares were earned and resulted in compensation expense of $35,000.

Note 13: Stock Option Plan

Under the Company's incentive stock option plan, which is accounted for in accordance with
APB No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, the
Company grants directors, selected executives and other key employees stock option awards
which vest at a rate of 20 percent per year commencing one year after the date the shares are
granted. The plan provides that in the event of a change in control or death or disability, all
unvested options will be immediately exercisable. During 1996, the Company authorized the
grant of options for up to 205,275 shares of the Company's common stock or 10 percent of the
shares issued in the Company's initial public offering. The exercise price of each option, which
has a 10-year life, was equal to the market price of the Company's stock on the date of grant;
therefore, no compensation expense was recognized.
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The following is a summary of the status of the Company's stock option plan and changes in
that plan as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise
Options: Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 182,901 § 14.25 180,101  § 1422
Granted - - 2,800 15.94
Exercised (3,000) 14.00 -- --
Forfeited (3,600) 14.00 -- --
QOutstanding, end of year 176,901 $ 14.26 182,901 $ 14.25
Options exercisable at year end ‘ 174,661 176,745
Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during the year $ - $ 3.46

As of December 31, 2002, the 176,901 options outstanding have exercise prices ranging from
$14.00 to $16.38 and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 3.5 years.

Although the Company has elected to follow APB No. 25, SFAS No. 123 requires pro forma
disclosures of net income and earnings per share as if the Company had accounted for its stock
options under that Statement (see Note 1). For options granted in 2001, the fair value of each
option grant was estimated on the grant date using an option-pricing model with the following

assumptions:

Risk-free interest rates
Dividend yields

Volatility factors of expected market price of common stock

Weighted-average expected life of the options (years)

2001

4.32%
2.76%
18.00%
10.00




Note 14: Postretirement Plan

The Company sponsors a defined-benefit postretirement plan that covers both salaried and
nonsalaried employees. The following table sets forth the plan's funded status, and amounts

recognized in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gain
Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at
end of year

Funded status
Unrecognized net actuarial gain
Unrecognized transition liability

Accrued benefit cost

Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost
Interest cost

Amortization of prior service cost

Net periodic benefit cost

2002 2001
$ 308 264
24 22

22 19

1 12

(19) %)

345 308

(345) (308)

) (10)

99 107

$ (255) @11)
24 22

22 19

8 8

$ 54 49

The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation was 9 percent, gradually declining to 5 percent in the year 2006.

The weighted average discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation was 7.25 percent in 2002 and 2001.

49




Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
health care plans. A one percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would
have the following effects:

One Percentage Point

Increase Decrease
Effect on total service components $ 13 $ (10)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 77 (59)

Note 15: Deferred Compensation

The Company has a deferred compensation plan for its directors whereby each director may
elect to defer his annual fees. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, fees deferred
totaled $44,000 and $42,000, interest expense related to this plan was $30,000 and $34,000, and
payments to directors totaled $76,000 in 2002 and $80,000 in 2001.

Note 16: Leases

The Company leases one branch office and another office previously operated as a branch
office under operating leases. The branch office is rented on a twenty-five year lease with three
five-year options with escalating rental payments.

The previous branch office is currently on a thirty-month lease which is renewable for two
additional thirty-month terms at the lessee's option. This office is being subleased to an
unrelated party. In addition, the lessee is required to pay the property taxes, normal maintenance
and insurance on the property.

The total minimum lease commitment at December 31, 2002 under these leases is $889,000
which is due as follows:

Lease Rent from Net Lease
Payments Sublease Payment
Years ending December 31

2003 $ 58 $ 30 $ 28
2004 58 30 28
2005 58 30 28
2006 58 30 28
2007 58 30 28
During the remaining lease term 599 76 520
Total $ 885 $ 229 $ 660

Total rent expense was $58,000 for both of the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.
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Note 17: Business Industry Segments

The Company’s primary business involves the typical banking services of generating loans
and receiving deposits. Through PASC, the Company also provides insurance and brokerage
services to customers. The following schedule i1s a summary of selected data for the Company’s

various business segments:

Insurance/
Banking  Brokerage
Services Services  Company  Eliminations Total
2002
Total interest income $ 10,603 $ - $ 10,603 $ -- $ 10,603
Total noninterest income 1,530 1,529 3,059 (80) 2,979
Total interest expense 4,244 -- 4,244 -- 4,244
Total noninterest expense 4,923 1,232 6,155 (80) 6,075
Income before income tax 2,796 297 3,093 -- 3,093
Income tax expense 1,078 111 1,189 -- 1,189
Net income 1,718 186 1,904 -- 1,904
Total assets 167,591 1,272 168,863 (1,613) 167,250
2001

Total interest income $11,707  § -- $11,707 % -- $11,707
Total noninterest income 923 1,239 2,162 (40) 2,122
Total interest expense 5,858 -- 5,858 -- 5,858
Total noninterest expense 4,897 938 5,835 (40) 5,795
Income before income tax 1,713 301 2,014 -- 2,014
Income tax expense 690 123 813 - 813
Net income 1,023 178 1,201 -- 1,201
Total assets 168,516 968 169,484 (1,139) 168,345
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Note 18: Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share (EPS) were computed as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Weighted
Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders $ 1,904 836,872 $ 2.28
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 69,220
Unearned incentive plan shares 5,390
Diluted earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders
and assumed conversions $ 1,904 911,482 $ 2.09

Year Ended December 31, 2001

Weighted
Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders $ 1,201 929,350 $ 1.29
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 24,477
Unearned incentive plan shares 6,106
Diluted earnings per share
Income available to common stockholders
and assumed conversions $ 1,201 959,933 $ 1.25

Note 19: Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following table presents estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments.
The fair values of certain of these instruments were calculated by discounting expected cash
flows, which invelves significant judgments by management and uncertainties. Fair value is the
estimated amount at which financial assets or liabilities could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Because no market
exists for certain of these financial instruments and because management does not intend to sell
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these financial instruments, the Company does not know whether the fair values shown below
represent values at which the respective financial instruments could be sold individually or in the

aggregate.

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,334 $ 32,334 $11,166 $11,166
Held-to-maturity securities 1,262 1,329 2,056 2,090
Mortgage loans held for sale 1,658 1,658 2,343 2,346
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 122,336 129,726 143,063 144,665
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,227 1,227 1,166 1,166
Interest receivable 683 683 789 789
Cash value of life insurance 268 268 251 251
Financial liabilities
Deposits 131,291 132,006 127,540 127,157
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 15,000 16,647 20,500 21,682
Advances from borrowers for taxes
and insurance 265 265 319 319
Interest payable 62 62 91 91

Unrecognized financial instruments
(net of contract amount)
Commitments to originate loans -- -- - -
Letters of credit -- - -- --
Lines of credit -- - -- --

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock -- The carrying amount
approximates fair value.

Securities -- Fair values equal quoted market prices, if available. If quoted market prices are
not available, fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices of similar securities.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale -- For homogeneous categories of loans, such as mortgage
loans held for sale, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices for securities backed by
similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics.

Loans -- The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the

current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and
for the same remaining maturities. Loans with similar characteristics were aggregated for
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purposes of the calculations. The carrying amount of accrued interest approximates its fair
value.

Cash Value of Life Insurance -- Fair values are based on estimated net realizable value.

Deposits -- Deposits include demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts, and certain
money market deposits. The carrying amount approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-
maturity time deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rates
currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. The carrying amount of accrued
interest payable approximates its fair value.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances -- The fair value of these borrowings are estimated using
a discounted cash flow calculation, based on current rates for similar debt.

Advances from Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance -- The fair value of advances from
borrowers for taxes and insurance approximates carrying value.

Commitments to Originate Loans, Letters of Credit and Lines of Credit -- The fair value of
commitments is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter intc similar agreements,
taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the
counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference
between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The fair value of letters of credit
and lines of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated
cost to terminate or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date.

Note 20; Significant Estimates and Concentrations

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of certain significant estimates
and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Estimates related to the allowance for
loan losses and mortgage servicing rights are reflected in the footnotes regarding loans and
mortgage servicing rights. Assumptions used in the postretirement benefit obligation estimate
are reflected in the footnote regarding the postretirement plan. Current vulnerabilities due to
certain concentrations of credit risk are discussed in the footnote on commitments and credit risk.

Note 21: Commitments and Credit Risk

The Company generates commercial, mortgage and consumer loans and receives deposits
from customers located primarily in Champaign County, Illinois and surrounding counties. The
Company's loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property,
consumer assets and business assets. Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a
substantial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent upon economic
conditions in the real estate industry in Champaign County.

Commitments to Originate Loans

Commitments to originate loans are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since a portion
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of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on
a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and
residential real estate.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Bank had outstanding commitments to originate loans
aggregating approximately $1,195,000 and $1,325,000, respectively. The commitments
extended over varying periods of time with the majority being disbursed within a one-year
period. Loan commitments at fixed rates of interest amounted to $538,000 and $850,000 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, with the remainder at floating market rates.

Mortgage loans in the process of origination represent amounts that the Bank plans to fund
within a normal period of 60 to 90 days, and which are intended for sale to investors in the
secondary market. Total mortgage loans in the process of origination amounted to $538,000 and
$1,182,000, and mortgage loans held for sale amounted to $1,658,000 and $2,343,000 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Letters of Credit

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing and
similar transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loans to customers.

The Bank had total outstanding letters of credit amounting to $68,000 and $214,000, at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, all with terms approximating one year.

Lines of Credit

Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Lines of credit generally have fixed expiration dates.
Since a portion of the line may expire without being drawn upon, the total unused lines do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on
a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and
residential real estate. Management uses the same credit policies in granting lines of credit as it
does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2002, the Bank had granted unused lines of credit to borrowers aggregating
approximately $1,729,000 for mortgage lines, $3,733,000 for commercial lines, and $4,667,000
for open-end consumers lines, respectively. At December 31, 2001, unused lines of credit to
borrowers aggregated approximately $1,530,000 for mortgage lines, $2,640,000 for commercial
lines and $2,452,000 for open-end consumer lines.
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The Company and subsidiary are alsc subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in
the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate
resolution of such claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position of the Company.

The Company has a concentration of funds on deposit with the Federal Home Loan Bank
totaling $22,318,000 and $5,798,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001.
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GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC.
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Stock Listing and Price Information

The Company's common stock trades on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market under the symbol
“GTPS”. At December 31, 2002, 818,490 shares of the Company's common stock were held of
record by 315 persons or entities, not including the number of persons or entities holding stock in
nominee or street name through various brokers or banks.

The following schedule shows the high and low bid prices for each of the quarters in the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Quarter Ended:

March 31, 2001
June 30, 2001
September 30, 2001
December 31, 2001
March 31, 2002
June 30, 2002
September 30, 2002
December 31, 2002

High

16.38
16.12
17.76
23.37
21.70
23.59
26.00
32.82

$

Low

12.63
14.12
15.37
17.25
19.00
20.25
22.30
23.89

At December 31, 2002 the closing price of a common share was $28.30. This information
was provided by The NASDAQ Stock Market. Such prices do not necessarily reflect retail
markups, markdowns, or commissions. During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the
Company declared dividends as follows:

Date Declared

February 12, 2001
May 14, 2001
August 13, 2001
November 19, 2001
February 11, 2002
May 13, 2002
August 12, 2002
November 18, 2002

Record Date

March 15, 2001
June 15, 2001
September 15, 2001
December 14, 2001
March 15, 2002
June 14, 2002
September 13, 2002
December 13, 2002
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Payable Date

April 2, 2001
July 2, 2001
October 1, 2001
January 2, 2002
April 1, 2002
July 1, 2002
October 1, 2002
January 2, 2003

$

Amount

A1
11
d1
A1
A1
A1
11

11
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Investor Information

Stockholders, investors and analysts interested in additional information may contact:

Jane F. Adams

Chief Financial Officer

Great American Bancorp, Inc.
1311 S. Neil Street
Champaign, IL 61820

Annual Repert on Form 10-KSB

A copy of the annual report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002,
which has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is available to stockholders
(excluding exhibits) at no charge, upon written request to the above address.

Corporate Coumnsel

Muldoon Murphy and Faucette LLP
5101 Wisconsin Avenue N.W.
Washington, D C 20016

Independent Accountants

BKD, LLP
225 N. Water, Suite 400
Decatur, IL 62525

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Great American Bancorp, Inc. will be held at 9:30
a.m. April 22, 2603 at:

First Federal Savings Bank of Champaign-Urbana
1311 S. Neil Street
Champaign IL 61820

Shareholders are welcome to attend.
Stock Tramsfer Agent and Registrar

Inquiries regarding stock transfer, registration, lost certificates or changes in name and
address should be directed to the transfer agent and registrar:

Computershare Investor Services
350 Indiana Street, Suite 800
Golden, CO 80401

(303) 262-0600
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GREAT AMERICAN BANCORP, INC.
BDIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Great American Bancorp, Inc. Directors and Executive Officers

Ronald E. Guenther, Chairman of the Board of the Company
Athletic Director, University of Illinois

Clinton C. Atkins, Director
Chairman of Hobbico Inc., a hobby retailer and supplier, and owner of The
Atkins Group, North Point Development, all real estate concerns.

Ronald Kiddoo, Director
Chairman of the Board and Chief Investment Officer, Cozad Asset
Management, Inc., an investment advisory concern.

George R. Rouse, Director
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

Jack B. Troxell, Director
Owner and President of C-U Liquor LTD, retail beverage stores.

Jane F. Adams
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of the Company

First Federal Savings Bank Directors and Executive Officers

Jack B. Troxell, Director and Chairman of the Board of the Bank*
Owner and President of C-U Liquor LTD, retail beverage stores.

Craig Bazzani, Director
Vice President - Foundation Advancement, University of Illinois

Dr. Kenneth DePersio, Director
Orthopedic Surgeon

Ronald E. Guenther, Director*
Athletic Director, University of Illinois

John Z. Hecker, Director
Partner, Stipes Publishing, LLC, book publishing.

Ronald Kiddoo, Director®

Chairman of the Board and Chief Investment Officer, Cozad Asset
Management, Inc., an investment advisory concern.
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First Federal Savings Bank Directors and Executive Officers, Continued

Michael J. Martin, Director®
General Manager, The Atkins Group, real estate development.

George R. Rouse, Director™®
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank

Jane F. Adams
Senior Vice President - Finance, Secretary-Treasurer of the Bank

Mark D. Piper
Senior Vice President - Operations of the Bank

Melinda K. Waller
Senior Vice President - Deposit Acquisitions of the Bank

Paul D. Wilson
Senior Vice President - Lending of the Bank

* Also Director of Park Avenue Service Corporation.

Park Avenue Service Corporation Officers

George R. Rouse b
President )

Jane F. Adams
Secretary and Treasurer

Larry Grill
Investment Representative
UMB Scout Brokerage Services, Inc.
Member NASD/SIPC

Michael Tennant
President, GTPS Insurance Agency

Gerald Cox
Senior Vice President, GTPS Insurance Agency
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